
Interim Review January–June 2018

• Operating profit for the Länsförsäkringar Alliance’s non-life insurance operations amounted to SEK 4,071 M (5,215). Premiums 
earned after ceded reinsurance rose 5% to SEK 13,136 M (12,495). 

• The technical result for the Länsförsäkringar Alliance’s non-life insurance operations amounted to SEK 655 M (948). 
The combined ratio was 98% (95). 

• Investment income for the Länsförsäkringar Alliance amounted to SEK 3,871 M (4,629). 

• Operating profit for the Länsförsäkringar AB Group was SEK 1,376 M (1,497). The return on equity was 11% (12). 

• Operating profit for Länsförsäkringar AB’s non-life insurance operations amounted to SEK 292 M (624). The combined ratio was  
unchanged at 93% (93). 

• Operating profit in the Bank Group rose 20% to SEK 888 M (737). Net interest income strengthened to SEK 2,193 M (1,911). 

• Operating profit for Länsförsäkringar Fondliv amounted to SEK 288 M (290). Premium income amounted to SEK 4,618 M (4,751). 
Commission and fee income increased to SEK 861 M (805). 

• Profit for Länsförsäkringar Liv amounted to SEK 783 M (1,937).  

January-June 2018 compared with January-June 2017 

Comment

The Länsförsäkringar Alliance reported healthy results for the first six 
months of 2018. Operating profit for the non-life insurance operations 
amounted to SEK 4.1 billion, with solid investment income of SEK 3.9 
billion and growth in premiums of 5%. However, the claims ratio incre-
ased slightly, mainly due to higher costs for fire and accident claims. 
This resulted in a combined ratio of 98%. 

Based on the highly favourable earnings in 2017, the regional insu-
rance companies will pay back a total of SEK 1.8 billion in bonuses and 
discounts during 2018 to their owners – the customers. 

The Länsförsäkringar AB Group also reported strong earnings of 
SEK 1.4 billion. Non-life insurance operations contributed an operating 
profit of SEK 0.3 billion and the combined ratio was 93%. Agria’s 
growth continued and operations started in France in April. Operating 
profit for the banking operations increased to SEK 0.9 billion due to a 
stable customer inflow. Lending improved 14% with continued high 
credit quality. Operating profit for the unit-linked insurance opera-
tions amounted to SEK 0.3 billion and managed assets increased to 
SEK 135 billion, of which 21% of the increase stemmed from net flows 
from existing and new customers.

In 2018, Länsförsäkringar won the insurance category of the Service 
Score survey for the seventh consecutive year, was named Sweden’s 
most sustainable insurance company by the Sustainable Brand Index 
for the fourth time and topped the Swedish Quality Index’s customer 
satisfaction survey in real- estate brokerage for the third year in a row. 

Länsförsäkringar entered into an important partnership with Toyota 
in the first half of the year and in 2019 Länsförsäkringar will take over 
responsibility for brand insurance and vehicle-damage guarantees for 
Toyota and Lexus cars in Sweden. With Toyota as a partner, Länsförsäk-

29 August 2018

ringar will be well-equipped to meet the rapid advances in the motor 
insurance market and thereby continue to offer relevant insurance 
solutions. 

Länsförsäkringar arranged six seminars at this year’s Almedalen 
political week discussing topics including how to increase security in 
society and how urbanisation is affecting a vital Sweden. 

Fringe-benefit tax of health care insurance was introduced in July, 
a tax that Länsförsäkringar has actively attempted to prevent since 
health care insurance provides important support for employers’ 
work-environment activities and, in tax terms, should be regarded as a 
health-promoting measure. 

The hot summer caused severe drought conditions in Sweden, 
which mainly impacted farmers. Länsförsäkringar works actively on 
claims-prevention measures, and expanded capacity this summer to 
support farmers and forest owners. Länsförsäkringar Alliance’s claims 
costs arising from this summer’s forest fires and torrential rain are ex-
pected to be relatively limited, and to be spread over a number of 
smaller claims.

Fredrik Bergström will become the President and CEO of Länsför-
säkringar AB in September. Fredrik is currently the President of Läns-
försäkringar Stockholm and possesses in-depth knowledge of the 
Länsförsäkringar Alliance. I am now retiring after 18 years at Länsför-
säkringar, and am very grateful for having been part of Länsförsäk-
ringar’s exciting development.

Sören Westin
President and CEO of Länsförsäkringar AB  
The Länsförsäkringar Alliance’s jointly owned company

lansforsakringar.se
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The Länsförsäkringar Alliance comprises 23 local and customer-owned 
regional insurance companies and the jointly owned Länsförsäkringar AB. 
Customers are provided with a complete offering of banking, insurance 
and real-estate brokerage services through the regional insurance 
companies. 

The starting point is local presence and decision-making. Experien-
ce shows that local decision-making authority combined with joint 
 strength creates substantial added value for customers.

Long-term respect for customers’ money is fundamental. There 
are no external shareholders; it is the customers’ money that is being 
managed. This approach characterises the entire business. 

The Länsförsäkringar Alliance has 3.8 million customers and 6,400 
employees. The Länsförsäkringar Alliance is not a Group in the legal sense 
of the term. Most of the non-life insurance business in the Länsförsäk-
ringar Alliance is underwritten in the regional insurance companies. 

The business conducted by Länsförsäkringar AB’s non-life insu-
rance group primarily comprises health, pet and crop insurance, and 
some cargo, liability, property and motor insurance. The Länsförsäk-
ringar AB Group also manages the Länsförsäkringar Alliance’s reinsu-
rance cover and assumed international reinsurance. Earnings from 
the Länsförsäkringar Alliance’s non-life insurance operations consist 
of the total earnings of the 23 regional insurance companies and the 
non-life insurance operations of the Länsförsäkringar AB Group.

Länsförsäkringar Liv is operated according to mutual principles 
and is not consolidated in Länsförsäkringar AB. 

Rating
Company Agency Long-term rating Short-term rating

Länsförsäkringar AB S & P Global Ratings A–/Stable –

Länsförsäkringar AB Moody’s A3/Stable –

Länsförsäkringar Bank S & P Global Ratings A/Stable A–1(K–1)

Länsförsäkringar Bank Moody’s A1/Stable P–1

Länsförsäkringar Hypotek1) S & P Global Ratings AAA/Stable –

Länsförsäkringar Hypotek1) Moody’s Aaa –

Länsförsäkringar Sak S & P Global Ratings A/Stable –

Länsförsäkringar Sak Moody’s A2/Stable –

Länsförsäkringar Alliance Market commentary

1) Pertains to the company’s covered bonds.

3.8 million customers

23 local regional insurance companies

Länsförsäkringar AB

Länsförsäkringar  
Bank A

B

Länsförsäkringar Sak 
Försäkrings A

B

Länsförsäkringar  
Fondliv Försäkrings A

B

* The company is operated according to mutual principles and is not consolidated in Länsförsäkringar AB.

Länsförsäkringar Liv 
Försäkrings A

B*

The global economy continued to strengthen in the second quarter, 
even though confidence indicators levelled off. Second-quarter news 
was dominated by the US stepping up its rhetoric on protectionist 
action and greater concern about the effects of a trade war. The mea-
sures that have been introduced and announced to date are not ex-
pected to present any great threat to the global economy, even 
though the risk of an escalating conflict has increased. The political 
tone in Europe was more uncertain driven by the election result in 
Italy. The new government coalition went to the polls on pursuing an 
expansive fiscal policy that risks increasing the deficit and governme-
nt debt.

The US economy and particularly the labour market continued to 
report strong figures. Inflation continued to rise and the US Federal 
Reserve is expected to continue to restrict its monetary policy. US 
long-term interest rates rose slightly in the second quarter. The de-
velopment in the Eurozone was somewhat weaker, although the la-
bour market continued to strengthen and monetary policy remained 
supportive. Long-term European government bond rates fell across 
the board due to heightened political uncertainty, while Italian go-
vernment bond rates rose relatively sharply. The ECB announced that 
it will phase out its asset purchase programme at year-end and the 
key interest rate will remain unchanged for at least another year. 
Swedish government bond rates and rates on Swedish covered bonds 
also dipped during the second quarter.

The Swedish economy continued to perform well. Confidence in-
dicators followed the international trend and levelled off, yet suggest 
a continued robust performance. Growth is expected to fall slightly 
on the back of lower housing investments. The Consumer Price Index 
with fixed interest rate (CPIF) rose an average of 2.0% in the second 
quarter, where the inflation trend is driven by both rising energy pri-
ces and the weak SEK. Underlying pressure on inflation remains low 
however. The Riksbank did not alter the repo rate in July and continu-
ed to indicate a rate rise in the fourth quarter of 2018. Uncertainty 
surrounding pressure on inflation remains and the market expects 
slower rate hikes than the Riksbank.

The equities markets were generally weighed down by trade con-
flicts. However, the trend on the US stock market was more positive 
than European stock markets as a result of expectations of higher 
growth in the US, while Europe was impeded by greater political un-
certainty. Emerging markets performed weakly in the second quarter, 
while the Stockholm stock exchange rose slightly. The SEK weakened 
against both the EUR and the USD in the second quarter. Housing pri-
ces increased slightly during the second quarter, although the situa-
tion in the housing market remains uncertain.
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Report commented on the development January-June 2018 compared to January-June 2017, unless otherwise stated.
Amounts are in SEK, unless otherwise stated.

Financial overview

Länsförsäkringar Alliance
Jan-Jun 2018 Jan-Jun 2017 Full-year 2017

Total capital, SEK M 76,210 68,185 72,442

Non-life insurance

Solvency capital, SEK M 69,999 62,772 66,149

Solvency margin, % 262 246 253

Return on equity, % 11 16 11

Premiums earned after ceded reinsurance, SEK M 13,136 12,495 25,504

Technical result, SEK M 655 948 2,529

Operating profit, SEK M 4,071 5,215 7,078

Combined ratio, % 98 95 92

Länsförsäkringar AB, Group1)

Jan-Jun 2018 Jan-Jun 2017 Full-year 2017

Operating profit, SEK M 1,376 1,497 2,825

Total assets, SEK M 509,807 454,846 473,773

Return on equity, % 11 12 11

Own funds for the group (FRL)2) , SEK M 45,988 41,567 44,172

Solvency capital requirement for the group (FRL)2), SEK M 35,182 30,412 33,441

Own funds for the financial conglomerate3) , SEK M 45,988 41,562 44,172

Capital requirement for the financial conglomerate3), SEK M 35,182 30,412 33,441

Länsförsäkringar Sak, Group
Jan-Jun 2018 Jan-Jun 2017 Full-year 2017

Premiums earned after ceded reinsurance, SEK M 2,884 2,787 5,623

Technical result, SEK M 218 477 977

Operating profit, SEK M 292 624 1,028

Solvency ratio, % (Länsförsäkringar Sak Försäkrings AB) 233 260 221

Länsförsäkringar Bank, Group
Jan-Jun 2018 Jan-Jun 2017 Full-year 2017

Deposits from the public, SEK M 104,412 97,144 99,404

Loans to the public, SEK M 275,841 242,249 261,444

Operating profit, SEK M 888 737 1,599

Return on equity, % 10.3 9.5 10.0

Tier 1 ratio Bank Group, % 25.9 24.3 24.3

Länsförsäkringar Fondliv
Jan-Jun 2018 Jan-Jun 2017 Full-year 2017

Premium income (rolling 12-months), SEK M 8,999 8,995 9,133

Operating profit, SEK M 288 290 600

Managed assets, SEK M 135,001 121,897 128,140

Solvency ratio, % 151 160 152

Länsförsäkringar Liv, Group (not consolidated in Länsförsäkringar AB)

Jan-Jun 2018 Jan-Jun 2017 Full-year 2017

Premium income after ceded reinsurance, SEK M 818 791 1,533

Profit, SEK M 783 1,937 3,121

Managed assets, SEK M 113,387 115,510 115,128

Solvency ratio, % 191 229 207

1) Excluding Länsförsäkringar Liv Försäkrings AB. The company is operated in accordance with mutual principles.
2)  According to Swedish Insurance Business Act (FRL), Solvens II directive in Swedish law.
3)  The finanicial conglomerate comprises Länsförsäkringar AB, all insurance companies in the Group, Länsförsäkringar Bank AB with subsidiaries and Länsförsäkringar Liv Försäkrings AB.
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Non-life insurance

 • Operating profit amounted to SEK 4,071 M (5,215) with investment income of SEK 3,871 M (4,629).
 • Premiums earned after ceded reinsurance increased 5% to SEK 13,136 M (12,495).
 • The technical result amounted to SEK 655 M (948).
 • The combined ratio amounted to 98% (95) with a claims ratio of 78% (76).
 • Solvency capital increased SEK 3,850 M during the period to SEK 69,999 M.

January-June 2018 Figures in parentheses pertain to the same period in 2017.

Non-life insurance, Länsförsäkringar Alliance

Key figures, SEK M
Jan-Jun 

2018
Jan-Jun 

2017
Full-year   

2017

Premiums earned after ceded reinsurance 13,136 12,495 25,504

Technical result 655 948 2,529

Bonuses and discounts –157 –147 –1,798

Total investment income 3,871 4,629 6,969

Operating profit 4,071 5,215 7,078

Solvency capital 69,999 62,772 66,149

Solvency margin, % 262 246 253

Expense ratio, % 20 19 18

Claims ratio, % 78 76 74

Combined ratio, % 98 95 92

Earnings
Earnings from the Länsförsäkringar Allian-
ce’s non-life insurance operations consist of 
the total earnings of the 23 regional insuran-
ce companies and the non-life insurance 
operations of the Länsförsäkringar AB 
Group. 

Operating profit for the Länsförsäkringar 
Alliance’s non-life insurance operations 
amounted to SEK 4,071 M (5,215). Earnings 
were boosted by solid investment income of 
SEK 3,871 M (4,629), which was slightly lower 
than the exceptionally strong investment in-
come in the same period of 2017. Despite 
healthy premium growth of 5%, the technical 
result declined to SEK 655 M (948), mainly 
due to increased costs for fire and accident 
claims. Accordingly, the claims ratio increa-
sed to 78% (76). The expense ratio was 20% 
(19), resulting in a combined ratio of 98% 
(95). The rolling 12-month combined ratio re-
mained stable at under 95%. Measured as a 
five-year average, the combined ratio was 
93% and the claims ratio 74%.

Solvency capital increased SEK 3,850 M 
during the first half of 2018 to SEK 69,999 M 
on 30 June 2018. The solvency margin 
amounted to 262% (246). 

Business volumes 
Länsförsäkringar’s leading position in the 
Swedish non-life insurance market remained 
stable with a market share of 30.7% for the 
first quarter of 2018, according to statistics 
from Insurance Sweden. 

Premiums earned increased 5.1% to SEK 
13,136 M (12,495). The increase was primarily 
attributable to premium increases, but also 
portfolio increases. Premiums earned for 
private insurance increased 4.4%, with 
growth continuing to be driven by household, 
homeowner and accident insurance. Agria 
reported robust growth, particularly in its in-
ternational operations. Premiums earned for 
the commercial segment rose 6.4%, primarily 
driven by healthy growth in commercial pro-
perty and commercial insurance. Premiums 
earned in the motor insurance segment in-
creased 3.3%, driven by both portfolio and 
premium increases. Premiums earned in the 
agriculture segment rose 3.4%. 

Claims trend 
Claims payments after ceded reinsurance 
amounted to SEK 10,164 M (9,324) and the 
claims ratio increased to 78% (76). Mainly fire 
and accident claims increased in the first 
half of 2018, although snow and freezing 
claims also increased as a result of the long 
winter. All segments reported fire-damage 
claims. Motor insurance claims, primarily hull 
and motor third-party liability, also increased 
compared with the year-earlier period. 

The long-term consequences of climate 
change for Sweden are of immediate interest 
given the exceptionally hot summer of 2018 
that has caused severe drought conditions 
throughout the country. As part of its 
claims-prevention activities, Länsförsäkring-
ar has actively informed its customers and 
the public about what to do to avoid risks 
connected with torrential rain, drought and 
fires. Länsförsäkringar Alliance’s claims costs 
arising from this summer’s forest fires and 
torrential rain are expected to be relatively li-
mited, and to be spread over a number of 
smaller claims.

Most of the Länsförsäkringar’s non-life insurance business is underwritten by the regional insurance companies. Earnings from the Länsförsäkringar Alliance’s non-life 
insurance operations consist of the total earnings of the 23 regional insurance companies and the non-life insurance operations of the Länsförsäkringar AB Group. 

80

85

90

95

100

June
2018

Dec
2017

June
2017

Dec
2016

June
2016

%

Combined ratio 
Rolling 12-month figures , %

Länsförsäkringar Alliance 
Interim Review January–June 2018 4 Non-life insurance



Investment income 
The Länsförsäkringar Alliance reported solid 
investment income of SEK 3,871 M (4,629) for 
the first half of 2018 due to increases in value in 
property investments, mainly from holdings in 
Humlegården, and to the improved performan-
ce of global stock markets in the second quar-
ter. Investment income was 3.7% of the asset 
value on 30 June 2018.

Other events
In June, Länsförsäkringar entered into an 
important partnership with Toyota entailing 
that from 1 January 2019 Länsförsäkringar 
will take over responsibility for brand insu-
rance and vehicle-damage guarantees for 
Toyota and Lexus cars in the Swedish market. 
Technological advances are rapid and the 
motor insurance market will see needs for 
new insurance solutions. With Toyota as a 
partner that is highly skilled in innovation, 
packaging and strong in sustainability, Läns-
försäkringar will be even better equipped to 
understand these new needs and thus conti-
nue to offer relevant insurance solutions.

 Equities   Interest-bearing 

 Property   Other 

Total investment assets amounted to SEK 105.7 billion  
on 30 June 2018.

Allocation of investment assets 

41.7%

20.8%

29.3%

8.2%
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Bank

 • Operating profit increased 20% to SEK 888 M (737) with a return on equity of 10.3% (9.5).

 • Net interest income rose 15% to SEK 2,193 M (1,911).

 • Business volumes increased to SEK 551 billion (486). Deposits rose to SEK 104 billion (97) and lending increased to
SEK 276 billion (242).

 • The number of customers with Länsförsäkringar as their primary bank rose 12% and the number of bank cards
increased 13%.

January-June 2018 Figures in parentheses pertain to the same period in 2017.

Länsförsäkringar Bank, Group

Key figures, SEK M
Jan-Jun 

2018
Jan-Jun 

2017
Full-year   

2017

Deposits from the public 104,412 97,144 99,404

Loans to the public 275,841 242,249 261,444

Operating profit 888 737 1,599

Return on equity, % 10.3 9.5 10.0

Cost/income ratio before loan losses 0.48 0.51 0.49

Earnings
The Länsförsäkringar Bank Group’s operating 
profit increased 20% to SEK 888 M (737), due 
to higher net interest income. Net interest 
income rose 15% to SEK 2,193 M (1,911) attri-
butable to increased volumes. Return on 
equity amounted to 10.3% (9.5). 

Net losses from financial items amounted 
to SEK 24 M (–35) due to unrealised changes 
in market values. Net commission amounted 
to SEK –414 M (–328) due to higher remune-
ration to the regional insurance companies 
as a result of a healthy volume trend.
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Expenses
Operating expenses rose 9% to SEK 874 M 
(799), mainly due to future-oriented IT in-
vestments. 

The cost/income ratio before credit losses 
amounted to 0.48 (0.51). 

Credit losses  
The Group applies IFRS 9 Financial Instru-
ments from 1 January 2018. The main finan-
cial impact of the standard is on the calcula-
tion of loss allowance. Under IFRS 9, the loss 
allowance is based on expected losses and is 
calculated on initial recognition. 

Credit losses amounted to SEK 49 M (21), 
net, corresponding to a credit loss level of 
0.04% (0.02). Credit-impaired loan receiva-
bles (stage 3) before provisions amounted to 
SEK 722 M, corresponding to a share of credit- 
impaired loan receivables of 0.18%. The esti-
mated value of collateral for credit-impaired 
loan receivables was SEK 417 M. The total re-
cognised loss allowance for loan receivables 
under IFRS 9 amounted to SEK 396 M, of 
which SEK 215 M pertained to credit-impai-
red loan receivables. The reserve ratio for 
credit-impaired loan receivables amounted 
to 29.8%. In addition to the recognised loss 
allowance for loan receivables, SEK 89 M of 
the remuneration to the regional insurance 
companies’ credit-risk commitments for ge-
nerated business is withheld in accordance 
with the settlement model. Including the 
withheld remuneration to the regional insu-
rance companies, the loss allowance for loan 
receivables totalled SEK 486 M. The reserve 
ratio for credit-impaired loan receivables, in-
cluding withheld remuneration to the regional 
insurance companies, amounted to 36.5%. 

Business volumes
Business volumes increased 13% to SEK 551 
billion (486). Lending increased 14% to SEK 
276 billion (242) with continued high credit 
quality. Lending in Länsförsäkringar Hypotek 
increased 16% to SEK 210 billion (182). Depo-
sits increased 8% to SEK 104 billion (97). The 
fund volume increased 16% to SEK 171 billion 
(147).

 Retail mortgages  Customer deposits 

 Agricultural loans  Funds  Other loans

Business volumes for the Bank Group
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Länsförsäkringar offers banking services through Länsförsäkringar Bank, which is part of the Länsförsäkringar AB Group. The 23 regional insurance companies are 
responsible for the bank’s customer contact, while Länsförsäkringar AB is responsible for conducting joint business activities, strategic development activities and 
providing service.
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Funding
The Bank Group has a low refinancing risk 
and the maturity profile is well diversified. 
Debt securities in issue increased to a nomi-
nal SEK 193 billion (165), of which covered 
bonds amounted to SEK 158 billion (134), se-
nior long-term funding to SEK 34 billion (30) 
and short-term funding to SEK 0.2 billion 
(1.1). The average remaining term for the 
long-term funding was 3.6 years (3.5) on 30 
June 2018. 

Covered bonds were issued during the 
period at a volume corresponding to a nomi-
nal SEK 25 billion (20), repurchased covered 
bonds to a nominal SEK 7 billion (2) and ma-
tured covered bonds to a nominal SEK 6 bil-
lion (6). Länsförsäkringar Bank issued senior 
unsecured bonds of a nominal SEK 5 billion 
(5) during the period, while maturities 
amounted to a nominal SEK 4 billion (4). 

In March, Länsförsäkringar Hypotek issu-
ed a seven-year Euro benchmark covered 
bond for a nominal EUR 500 M. 

The Swedish National Debt Office deci-
ded in June that the liabilities that Länsför-
säkringar Bank in the consolidated situation 
uses to meet the Minimum Requirement for 
Own Funds and Eligible Liabilities (MREL) are 
to be subordinated. The volume of subordi-
nated liabilities must be built up by 2022.

 Covered bonds   Senior unsecured

 Commercial papers
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Liquidity
On 30 June 2018, the liquidity reserve total-
led SEK 53 billion (45). The liquidity reserve is 
invested in securities with very high credit 
quality that are eligible for transactions with 
the Riksbank and, where appropriate, with 
the ECB. By utilising the liquidity reserve, 
contractual undertakings can be met for 
more than two years without needing to se-
cure new funding in the capital market. 

The Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) for the 
consolidated situation on 30 June 2018 
amounted to 336% (335) according to the 
European Commission’s delegated act. The 
Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) for the 
consolidated situation amounted to 116% 
(116)* on 30 June 2018. 

*  The calculation is based on Länsförsäkringar Bank’s interpretation 
of the Basel Committee’s most recent Net Stable Funding Ratio 
proposal. The comparative figure pertains to 31 March 2018.

Other events 
On 2 April 2018, Sven Eggefalk took office as 
President of Länsförsäkringar Bank. In con-
nection with this, Anders Borgcrantz retur-
ned to his position of CFO and Executive Vice 
President of Länsförsäkringar Bank. Marie 
Lundberg, President of Wasa Kredit, resigned 
on 26 June and will leave Wasa Kredit in Sep-
tember 2018. On 20 August 2018, Ulf Hjert-
berg took office as Acting President of Wasa 
Kredit. Länsförsäkringar Bank sold its parti-
cipations in UC AB to Asiakastieto Group Plc 
in April 2018 and received SEK 3.7 M in cash 
and 31,782 shares in Asiakastieto Group Plc. 
The transaction was completed on 29 June 
2018.
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Life assurance and pension insurance

 • Operating profit for Länsförsäkringar Fondliv amounted to SEK 288 M (290).

 • Total managed assets for Länsförsäkringar Fondliv increased to SEK 135 billion (122).

 • Profit for Länsförsäkringar Liv amounted to SEK 783 M (1,937).

 • Total managed assets for Länsförsäkringar Liv amounted to SEK 113 billion (116).

January-June 2018 Figures in parentheses pertain to the same period in 2017.

Länsförsäkringar Fondliv and Länsförsäkringar Liv

Key figures, SEK M
Jan-Jun 

2018
Jan-Jun 

2017
Full-year   

2017

Länsförsäkringar Fondliv

Premium income, net (rolling 12 months) 8,999 8,995 9,133

Operating profit 288 290 600

Managed assets 135,001 121,897 128,140

Solvency ratio, % 151 160 152

Länsförsäkringar Liv  
(not consolidated in Länsförsäkringar AB)

Profit 783 1,937 2,363

Managed assets 113,387 115,510 115,128

Collective consolidation ratio, New Trad, % 115 117 117

Collective consolidation ratio, Old Trad, % 125 123 123

Solvency ratio, % 191 229 207

SEK bn
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Earnings for Länsförsäkringar Fondliv
Länsförsäkringar Fondliv’s operating profit 
amounted to SEK 288 M (290). The year-on-
year decline was the result of method changes 
for capitalisation and depreciation of deferred 
acquisition costs. However, income increa-
sed due to growing managed assets. 

Total managed assets increased SEK 7 bil-
lion in the first half of the year to SEK 135 bil-
lion (122) on 30 June 2018. The increase was 
mainly the result of a high value growth 
trend, but also a positive net flow from exis-
ting and new customers. 

Total premium income amounted to SEK 
4,618 M (4,751), of which capital transferred 
to the company was SEK 688 M (711). The de-
crease is mainly because Länsförsäkringar 
Fondliv is no longer an eligible manager in 
the KAP-KL pension area. Premium income 
after ceded reinsurance for insurance risk 
increased to SEK 116 M (102). Commission 
and fee income rose to SEK 861 M (805) due 
to growing managed assets. 

Operating expenses increased to SEK 578 
M (515), primarily due to higher distribution 
and administration expenses. Investments 
were also made in digital development, such 
as greater functionality in Länsförsäkringar’s 
app and continued robotisation of processes 
in unit-linked insurance. 

Capital situation
Länsförsäkringar Fondliv’s capital situation is 
expressed and measured in accordance with 
Solvency II as a ratio of own funds in relation 
to risk-based capital requirements. Länsför-
säkringar Fondliv’s solvency ratio on 30 June 
2018 amounted to 151% (160). 

Länsförsäkringar Fondliv’s unit-linked 
insurance and guarantee management
Unit-linked insurance
Some 75% of the funds in the total fund 
range performed positively during the first 

half of 2018. 12% of the funds increased by 
more than 10% and no fund fell more than 
10%. Funds in the equities categories of US 
equities, technology, Swedish and Nordic 
small cap and global equities reported the 
strongest performance. However, funds in 
the categories of emerging market bonds, 
hedge funds and precious metals noted the 
weakest performance. 

According to Insurance Sweden’s market 
statistics for the first quarter of 2018, Läns-
försäkringar Fondliv remained the market le-
ader in the unit-linked insurance market for 
individual occupational pensions. The market 
share was 18.6% measured in premium inco-
me and 19.9% measured in new sales. 

Länsförsäkringar Fondliv works conti-
nuously on realising a new fund strategy of 
simplifications and greater choice for custo-
mers. The fund range will be increased in 
both scope and quality. 19 new funds have 
been launched to date this year, leading to 
more options for customers to invest in dif-
ferent equities and interest-bearing catego-
ries and in funds with a sustainability focus. 
The funds in the recommended range are ca-
refully analysed and assessed based on cri-

teria including management organisation, re-
turn and sustainability. 

Guarantee Management
Länsförsäkringar Fondliv offers management 
of pension insurance carrying a guarantee 
element regarding paid-in premiums. The gu-
arantee principle is that the customer re-
coups premiums paid in to savings, but with 
the possibility of additional returns. Full gua-
rantee, meaning “at least your premium 
back” applies for a minimum ten-year savings 
period. A sliding scale is applied to shorter 

Länsförsäkringar offers life-assurance and pension solutions to corporate customers and private individuals. Fund management, Guarantee Management and personal-risk 
insurance are offered through Länsförsäkringar Fondliv. No new policies are underwritten in Länsförsäkringar Liv, the company manages traditional life assurance that 
was taken out before September 2011. Länsförsäkringar Liv is operated according to mutual principles and is not consolidated in Länsförsäkringar AB.
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savings periods, with the guarantee at 80% 
of paid-in premiums for periods of five to ten 
years until retirement, and a minimum of 
70% of paid-in premiums with less than five 
years until retirement. The assets are divided 
between interest-bearing investments, equi-
ties and alternative investments, with the in-
terest-bearing portion always being at least 
40% and the equities portion, together with 
the alternative investment portion, may be 
as low as zero. On 30 June 2018, 64% of the 
investments comprised interest-bearing in-
vestments and 36% equities. 

Managed assets amounted to SEK 3.3  
billion (2.9). 

The trend in return for the first half of 
2018 was varied, but on 30 June 2018 the re-
turn was 0.3% (4.0).

Earnings for Länsförsäkringar Liv
Profit for Länsförsäkringar Liv amounted to 
SEK 783 M (1,937). Investment income and 
transitions to New Trad had a positive effect 
on earnings in 2018. Transitions from Old 
Trad to New Trad made a positive contribu-
tion to earnings in both 2017 and 2018 based 
on lower technical provisions. 

The change in earnings year-on-year was 
largely due to lower investment income and 
the interest rate trend in the first half of 
2018. Unlike 2017, market interest rates fell in 
the first half of 2018, resulting in a negative 
earnings effect. The Swedish ten-year go-
vernment bond rate fell by just under 30 ba-
sis points. Changes in market interest rates 
affect Länsförsäkringar Liv’s earnings with 
falling market interest rates leading to hig-
her liabilities to policyholders since future 
commitments are discounted with the mar-
ket interest rate. However, the company can 
largely protect itself from interest-rate 
changes impacting earnings by matching as-
sets and liabilities against each other. 

Apart from falling market interest rates, 
discounting of future commitments was ne-
gatively impacted by the Ultimate Forward 
Rate (UFR) being lowered by 0.15% from 4.2% 
to 4.05%. The UFR affects the discounting of 
liabilities with terms of more than ten years. 
Liabilities to policyholders declined SEK 1.9 
billion (1.5) during the period, primarily due to 
negative cash flows, meaning that payouts 
and external transfers exceeded premium 
payments. 

Operating expenses declined to SEK 179 M 
(188). 

Investment income was positive for New and 
Old Trad and totalled SEK 1.0 billion (2.6). 

Länsförsäkringar Liv is operated accor-
ding to mutual principles and is not consoli-
dated in Länsförsäkringar AB. 

Capital situation 
Länsförsäkringar Liv’s capital situation is ex-
pressed and measured in accordance with 
Solvency II as a ratio of own funds in relation 
to risk-based capital requirements. Länsför-
säkringar Liv’s solvency ratio on 30 June 
2018 amounted to 191% (229). The decrease 
in the solvency ratio was the result of increa-
ses in the capital requirement for market 
risk, mainly based on updated calculations. 

Collective consolidation is calculated as 
the ratio between total capital and insurance 
capital. Collective consolidation on 30 June 
2018 amounted to 115% (117) in New Trad and 
125% (123) in Old Trad. 

Länsförsäkringar Liv’s traditional 
management
Länsförsäkringar Liv, which is closed for new 
business, conducts traditional life assurance 
for its customers divided into four portfolios: 
New Trad, Old Trad, New World and Insured 
Pension. Total managed assets amounted to 
SEK 113 billion (116) on 30 June 2018.  

New Trad 
Customers in Old Trad and New World are 
offered the opportunity to transition their 
existing traditional insurance policies to New 
Trad for which lower guarantees enable gre-
ater flexibility in asset management. Mana-
ged assets in New Trad amounted to SEK 22 
billion (19). Investments as at 30 June 2018 
comprised 59% interest-bearing invest-
ments, 34% equities, 5% alternative invest-
ments and 2% properties. The investment 
mix and the risk in the investment portfolio 
were relatively unchanged in 2018. The in-
vestment return amounted to 1.8% (4.0), with 
equities investments accounting for the lar-
gest contribution with a return of 2.3%. 

The bonus rate on 30 June 2018 was 6% 
(5). The bonus rate was raised from 5% on 1 
October 2017. 

Old Trad 
In Old Trad, Länsförsäkringar Liv manages 
assets of SEK 79 billion (83) on behalf of its 
customers. The aim of risk-taking in the Old 
Trad investment portfolio, given the prevail-

ing low interest-rate environment, is to en-
sure that the guaranteed bonus can be reali-
sed also in the event of a negative market 
trend. At the same time, balanced risk-taking 
is applied to facilitate a reasonable return on 
customers’ savings. Investments in Old Trad 
on 30 June 2018 comprised 86% inte-
rest-bearing investments, 8% equities and 
the remainder was property and alternative 
investments. The equity portion increased 
slightly in the first half of 2018 compared 
with the year-earlier period. 

Investment return amounted to 0.9% (1.4). 
The bonus rate on 30 June 2018 was 2% (2). 

New World 
New World is a traditional insurance policy 
whereby customers benefit from upturns on 
the equities market, while at the same time 
are guaranteed to recoup at least the premi-
ums paid, after deductions for expenses and 
yield tax. Managed assets amounted to SEK 
11 billion (12). The percentage of equities for 
the New World management form is normal-
ly 70% and the remaining 30% comprises in-
terest-bearing investments. However, the in-
vestment mix can vary within defined 
intervals, with the percentage of equities 
comprising 60–80%. 

The investment return was -0.3% (7.7).
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Real-estate brokerage

Through Länsförsäkringar Fastighets-
förmedling, Länsförsäkringar offers 
a total solution for reliable mortgage 
transactions: real-estate brokerage, 
banking and insurance services all 
in one company. Real-estate bro-
kerage is also a key customer me-
eting for sales of mortgages and 
insurance.

Länsförsäkringar Fastighetsförmedling has 
163 branches throughout Sweden. Strong 
growth has advanced Länsförsäkringar Fast-

ighetsförmedling to the position of third lar-
gest brokerage in Sweden. Länsförsäkringar 
Fastighetsförmedling is Sweden’s fastest 
growing estate-agent chain and for the third 
consecutive year had the most satisfied 
customers according to the Swedish Quality 
Index’s customer satisfaction survey for the 
estate-agent industry. 

The real-estate brokerage is an integra-
ted part of the local regional insurance com-
panies’ full-service offering. The aim is to of-
fer more than just the brokerage of 
residential properties. The operations are 
conducted in franchise form, whereby the 
regional insurance company acts as the 
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 Total value, SEK billion

 Number of residential properties sold

 Loan total, SEK M

 Number of loans

franchiser for the local branch. This also 
means that Länsförsäkringar Fastighetsför-
medling differs from other national estate- 
agent chains by always being locally based.

Länsförsäkringar Fastighetsförmedling 
can summarise strong sales figures for the 
period. A total of 21,005 (20,349) properties 
were brokered between July 2017 and June 
2018, of which 11,429 (11,450) tenant-owned 
apartments, 8,608 (7,777) single-family ho-
mes and 403 (455) agricultural properties. 
The number of properties sold increased a 
total of more than 3% year-on-year. The total 
sales value for the period amounted to SEK 
46.0 billion (43.7). 

Länsförsäkringar Fastighetsförmedling’s 
sales of single-family homes increased in the 
period, resulting in SEK 4.3 billion (3.3) in 
first-lien mortgages in Länsförsäkringar’s 
mortgage institution, divided between 1,843 
(1,540) transactions.

Länsförsäkringar offers real-estate brokerage though Länsförsäkringar Fastighetsförmedling. The operations are conducted in franchise form, whereby the regional 
insurance companies act as franchisers for the 163 local branches across Sweden.

 Fastighetsbyrån 18,936

 Svensk Fastighetsförmedling 10,602

 Länsförsäkringar Fastighetsförmedling 8,608

 Mäklarhuset 3,513

 SkandiaMäklarna 2,934

 Bjurfors 2,538

 HusmanHagberg 2,326

 ERA 1,078

 Mäklarringen 1,037

 Hemverket 964

 Other brokers and private 20,748

 Fastighetsbyrån 25.8%

 Svensk Fastighetsförmedling 14.5%

 Länsförsäkringar Fastighetsförmedling 11.7%

 Mäklarhuset 4.8%

 SkandiaMäklarna 4.0%

 Bjurfors 3.5% 

 HusmanHagberg 3.2%

 ERA 1.5%

 Mäklarringen 1.4%

 Hemverket 1.3%

 Other brokers and private 28.3%
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Earnings

SEK M

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

Jan-Jun
2018

Jan-Jun
2017

Jan-Jun
2016

Jan-Jun
2015

Jan-Jun
2014

Operating profit for the Länsförsäkringar AB Group

The Länsförsäkringar AB Group’s operating 
profit was SEK 1,376 M (1,497). The return on 
equity was 11% (12). 

Operating profit for the non-life insuran-
ce operations amounted to SEK 292 M (624). 
The change in earnings was primarily due to 
SEK 260 M in positive remuneration in the 
first quarter of 2017 for the accident and 
health insurance business transferred to the 
regional insurance companies. Premiums 
earned after ceded reinsurance rose 3% to 
SEK 2,884 M (2,787) and the combined ratio 
was unchanged at 93% (93). 

The Bank Group’s operating profit increa-
sed to SEK 888 M (737), due to higher net in-
terest income. Net interest income rose 15% 
to SEK 2,193 M (1,911) attributable to increa-
sed volumes. 

Managed assets in the unit-linked insu-
rance operations increased 11% to SEK 135 
billion (122), mainly the result of a high value 
growth trend, but also a positive net inflow. 
Operating profit amounted to SEK 288 M 
(290). 

The Group’s investment return attributa-
ble to the insurance operations’ and Parent 

Company’s assets amounted to 2.3% (2.5). 
Properties, which at the end of June 2018 to-
talled 25% (21) of investment assets, yielded 
the highest return contributing 2.4 percenta-
ge points (1.4) to investment return. This was 
mainly driven by positive changes in the mar-
ket value of property holdings. In the fix-
ed-income portfolio, which contributed –0.2 
of a percentage point (0.6), primarily increa-
sed credit spreads for US credits had the 
most negative contribution. The contribution 
from equities was a positive 0.2 of a percen-
tage point (0.5), while the contribution from 
currencies was slightly negative. 

Capital situation 
The Länsförsäkringar AB Group’s equity in-
creased SEK 888 M during the first six 
months of 2018 to SEK 25,745 M. 

The Länsförsäkringar AB Group is a finan-
cial conglomerate. The Group’s companies are 
encompassed by group solvency regulations 
in accordance with legislation on financial 
conglomerates, legislation on insurance ope-
rations and legislation on banking operations. 

At 30 June 2018, surplus capital for the 
Länsförsäkringar AB Group under the rules 
on financial conglomerates was SEK 10.8 bil-
lion, up SEK 0.1 billion during the half-year. 
Own funds amounted to SEK 46.0 billion and 
the capital requirement to SEK 35.2 billion. 
The capital situation under the rules on insu-
rance operations commensurate with the 
capital situation under the rules on financial 
conglomerates on 30 June 2018. 

The Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio for 
consolidated situation* (the group encom-
passed by the group rules for banking opera-
tions) was 24.7% at the end of the first half-
year, up 1.4 percentage points during the 
half-year. 

Länsförsäkringar AB paid dividends of SEK 
300 M to its owners in the first half of 2018. 
Länsförsäkringar AB received dividends and 
Group contributions for a total amount of 
SEK 1,310 M from its subsidiaries Länsförsäk-
ringar Sak and Länsförsäkringar Fondliv, 
which helped strengthen the capital situation 
of the consolidated situation. Länsförsäk-
ringar AB paid a capital contribution of SEK 
800 M to Länsförsäkringar Bank. 

The capital situation of Länsförsäkringar 
AB’s directly owned consolidated subsidia-
ries is shown in the following table.

Capital situation of subsidiaries

30 Jun 2018 31 Dec 2017 30 Jun 2017

Länsförsäkringar Sak  
Försäkrings AB

Solvency ratio, % 233 221 260

Länsförsäkringar Fondliv  
Försäkrings AB

Solvency ratio, % 151 152 160

Länsförsäkringar  
Bank Group

Common Equity 
Tier 1 capital ratio, % 25.9 24.3 24.3

*  The Länsförsäkringar Bank Group consolidated with Länsförsäk-
ringar AB and the property company Utile Dulci 2 HB.

Non-life insurance
Länsförsäkringar AB’s non-life insurance bu-
siness primarily comprises health, pet and 
crop insurance, some cargo, liability, proper-
ty and motor insurance as well as internatio-
nal reinsurance. Länsförsäkringar Sak also 
manages the Länsförsäkringar Alliance’s joint 
reinsurance cover. 

Operating profit for Länsförsäkringar AB 
non-life insurance business amounted to 
SEK 292 M (624), with a combined ratio of 
92.8% (92.6). The technical result for insuran-
ce operations amounted to SEK 218 M (477). 

Länsförsäkringar AB

• The Länsförsäkringar AB Group’s operating profit was SEK 1,376 M (1,497). The return on equity was 11% (12).

• The Länsförsäkringar AB Group’s equity amounted to SEK 25,745 M.
• Operating profit for the non-life insurance operations amounted to SEK 292 M (624). Premiums earned after ceded 

reinsurance rose 3% to SEK 2,884 M (2,787). The combined ratio was unchanged at 93% (93).

• Net sales for the Parent Company increased to SEK 1,486 M (1,365).  

January-June 2018 Figures in parentheses pertain to the same period in 2017.

Länsförsäkringar AB and its subsidiaries are commissioned by the regional insurance companies to conduct joint banking and insurance operations, pursue strategic 
development activities and provide service in areas that generate economies of scale and efficiency. Länsförsäkringar AB’s non-life insurance business is divided into 
the following three business areas: Agria (pet and crop insurance), Health and Reinsurance and Special Insurance.
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Claims payments after ceded reinsurance 
amounted to SEK 2,038 M (1,988) and the 
claims ratio to 70.7% (71.3). The expense ratio 
totalled 22.1% (21.3).

The year-on-year change in earnings was 
primarily due to positive remuneration of 
SEK 260 M in the first quarter of 2017 for the 
part of the accident and health insurance 
business that was transferred from Länsför-
säkringar Sak to the regional insurance com-
panies. Excluding this remuneration, the 
technical result for insurance operations for 
the first half of 2018 was in line with the cor-
responding period in 2017, but with changes 
in various business lines. 

Premiums earned after ceded reinsuran-
ce rose 3% to SEK 2,884 M (2,787). Premiums 
earned increased despite the regional insu-
rance companies renewing accident and 
health insurance policies for adults from 
2017. Agria’s premiums earned rose as a re-
sult of portfolio growth, mainly in the inter-
national branches, and premium increases. 

Agria
Agria reported slightly weaker earnings, pri-
marily due to costs for establishing the branch 
that was opened in France in April 2018. Ag-
ria’s combined ratio rate amounted to 93.6% 
(92.4). Agria’s largest business line in terms 
of volume – pet insurance – continued to de-
liver stable earnings. 

Health 
Earnings for the part of the accident and 
health insurance business that was not 
transferred to the regional insurance com-
panies improved as a result of premium 
adjustments and a review of product condi-
tions. However, earnings for accident insu-
rance declined due to higher claims costs in 
the current year and strengthened reserves 
for claims in prior years. 

Reinsurance and Special
Earnings for liability insurance and the Läns-
försäkringar Alliance’s internal reinsurance, 
to which Länsförsäkringar Sak contributes a 
15% share of assumed reinsurance, improved 
year-on-year.
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Technical result for Länsförsäkringar Sak Group

The Länsförsäkringar Sak Group’s invest-
ment return amounted to 3.0% (2.6). Proper-
ties, which at the end of June 2018 totalled 
31% (25) of investment assets, yielded the 
highest return, driven by positive changes in 
market value, contributing 3.1 percentage 
points (1.8) to investment return. The fix-
ed-income portfolio, which has a short dura-
tion, impacted the return by -0.1 of a percen-
tage point (0.7) with primarily US credits 
accounting for the largest negative contribu-
tion. 

Bank
Operating profit for the Länsförsäkringar 
Bank Group, which is included in the Länsför-
säkringar AB Group, increased 20% to SEK 
888 M (737), due to higher net interest inco-
me. Net interest income rose 15% to SEK 
2,193 M (1,911) attributable to increased volu-
mes. More information about Länsförsäkring-
ar Bank is available on pages 6-7. 

Unit-linked insurance
Operating profit for Länsförsäkringar Fond-
liv, which is included in the Länsförsäkringar 
AB Group, amounted to SEK 288 M (290). To-
tal managed assets increased SEK 7 billion in 
the first half of 2018 to SEK 135 billion (122) 
on 30 June 2018. More information about 
Länsförsäkringar Fondliv is available on pa-
ges 8-9. 

Parent Company 
Profit after financial items for the Länsför-
säkringar AB Group’s Parent Company 
amounted to SEK 1,297 M (1,174). Profit was 
positively impacted by dividends and Group 
contributions of SEK 850 M (750) from Läns-
försäkringar Fondliv and SEK 460 M (500) 
from Länsförsäkringar Sak. Net sales increa-
sed to SEK 1,486 M (1,365). 

Significant events after the end of the 
interim period
On 10 September 2018, Fredrik Bergström 
will become the new President and CEO of 
Länsförsäkringar AB.

Risks and uncertainty factors  
of the operations 
The Länsförsäkringar AB Group’s banking 
and insurance operations give rise to various 
types of risks, with the most prominent risks 
comprising credit risk in the Bank Group and 
insurance and market risks in the non-life in-
surance and unit-linked life-assurance com-
panies. Alongside these risks, focus on cyber 
risks and climate risks has been intensified 
over time. 

Credit risk in the Länsförsäkringar Bank 
Group is primarily affected by the economic 
situation in Sweden since all loans are gran-
ted locally. The Bank Group is also exposed 
to liquidity risk and a certain level of market 
risk. Credit losses remain low and the refi-
nancing of business activities is highly satis-
factory. A settlement model has been app-
lied since 2014 regarding the commitment 
that the regional insurance companies have 
for credit losses related to the business they 
have originated. The model entails that the 
regional insurance companies cover 80% of 
the provision requirement on the date when 
an impairment is identified, by off-setting 
this against a buffer of accrued commission. 

Market risks primarily arise in Länsför-
säkringar Fondliv on the basis of indirect ex-
posure to market risk, since future income in 
the unit-linked insurance operations is de-
pendent on trends in the financial market. 
Länsförsäkringar Sak’s market risk is less ex-
tensive and is predominantly attributable to 
the company’s investment assets. 

Life-assurance risks primarily comprise 
cancellation risk in Länsförsäkringar Fondliv, 
meaning the risk of lower future fee income 
due to customers moving their insurance to 
paid-up policies or transferring them to 
another insurance company. 

Non-life insurance risks arise on the basis 
of business in Länsförsäkringar Sak, which 
conducts highly diverse business operations 
ranging from cargo insurance and reinsuran-
ce to pet insurance in the subsidiary Agria. 
These risks are reinsured to a high extent. 

The risks that arise directly in the Parent 
Company Länsförsäkringar AB are primarily 
attributable to the company’s investments in 
liquidity and the business-support opera-
tions conducted on behalf of the subsidiaries 
and the regional insurance companies. 
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Cyber risks arise in the use and transfer of 
digital data in the operations. Climate risks 
arising from climate change can directly or 
indirectly increase other risks, for example, 
by increasing insurance claims, financial los-
ses or damage to the brand. 

Länsförsäkringar AB and its insurance 
subsidiaries have permission from the 
Swedish Financial Supervisory Authority to 
calculate the capital requirement for insu-
rance operations using a partial internal mo-
del. Capital requirements for most market 
risks, non-life insurance risks and health-in-
surance risks are calculated using an inter-
nal model, whereas other types of risk are 
calculated by applying the standard formula. 
Länsförsäkringar Bank also has approval 
from the Financial Supervisory Authority to 
use the Internal Ratings Based Approach 
(IRB Approach) for credit risk measurement 
for calculating the capital requirement.

The risks that the Group and Parent 
Company are exposed to have not changed 
materially since 31 December 2017. A more 
detailed description of these, and how they 
are managed, is presented in the 2017 Annual 
Report in Group note 2 Risk and capital ma-
nagement. 

The results of the operations during the peri-
od and the financial position of the Länsför-
säkringar AB Group and the Parent Company 
at 30 June 2018 are presented in the fol-
lowing financial statements with accompa-
nying notes.

Länsförsäkringar Alliance 
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Income statement for Länsförsäkringar Alliance non-life insurance

SEK M
Jan–Jun 

2018
Jan–Jun 

2017
Full-year 

2017

Premiums earned after ceded reinsurance 13,136 12,495 25,504

Investment income transferred from financial operations 244 174 356

Claims payments after ceded reinsurance –10,164 –9,324 –18,571

Operating expenses –2,532 –2,358 –4,629

Other technical revenue/expenses –30 –40 –130

Technical result for non-life insurance operations  
before bonuses and discounts 655 948 2,529

Bonuses and discounts –157 –147 –1,798

Technical result for non-life insurance operations  
after bonuses and discounts 497 801 731

Total investment income 3,871 4,629 6,969

Investment income transferred to insurance operations –350 –180 –434

Other non-technical revenue/expenses 52 –34 –189

Operating profit for the period 4,071 5,215 7,078

Balance Sheet for Länsförsäkringar Alliance non-life insurance

SEK M 30 June 2018 31 December 2017

ASSETS

Shares and participations 44,087 42,381

Bonds and other interest-bearing securities 30,944 29,475

Other investment assets 30,654 29,573

Total investment assets 105,685 101,429

Reinsurers’ portion of technical provisions 11,035 10,447

Receivables and other assets 12,802 11,147

Cash and bank balances 5,457 5,340

Prepaid expenses and accrued income 1,542 1,548

TOTAL ASSETS 136,521 129,911

EQUITY, PROVISIONS AND LIABILITIES

Equity 58,680 54,950

Technical provisions (before ceded reinsurance) 63,500 57,114

Other provisions and liabilities 13,073 14,748

Accrued expenses and deferred income 1,268 3,100

TOTAL EQUITY, PROVISIONS AND LIABILITIES 136,521 129,911

Länsförsäkringar Alliance non-life insurance 
Financial statements

The Länsförsäkringar Alliance comprises 23 local and customerowned  regional insurance companies and the jointly owned  Länsförsäkringar AB. The Länsför-
säkringar Alliance is not a Group in the legal sense of the term. Most of the non-life insurance business in the Alliance is underwritten by the regional insurance 
companies. The business conducted by Länsförsäkringar AB’s non-life insurance Group comprises health insurance, animal insurance, ceded and assumed 
reinsurance as well as marine and cargo insurance and some casualty, property and motor insurance. Earnings from the Länsförsäkringar Alliance’s non-life  
insurance operations consist of the total earnings of the 23 regional insurance companies and the non-life insurance operations of the Länsförsäkringar AB 
Group. The earnings for the Parent Company Länsförsäkringar AB is also included. The holdings and change in value in the Länsförsäkringar AB share and trans-
actions between the regional insurance companies and the Länsförsäkringar AB Group have been eliminated. The 23 regional insurance companies and  
the Länsförsäkringar AB Group apply the approved International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Länsförsäkringar Alliance 
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Key figures for Länsförsäkringar AB Group

SEK M
Jan–Jun 

2018
Jan–Jun 

2017
Full-year 

2017

Group

Operating profit 1,376 1,497 2,825

Net profit for the period 1,119 1,200 2,250

Return on equity, % 1) 11 12 11

Total assets, SEK billion 510 455 474

Equity per share, SEK 2) 2,355 2,161 2,269

Solvency capital 3) 28,672 26,447 27,740

Solvency margin, % 4) 476 449 467

Own funds for the group 5) 45,988 41,567 44,172

Solvency capital requirement for the group 5) 35,182 30,412 33,441

Own funds for the financial conglomerate 6) 45,988 41,562 44,172

Capital requirement for the financial conglomerate 6) 35,182 30,412 33,441

Insurance operation 7)

Non-life insurance operations

Premiums earned (after ceded reinsurance) 2,749 2,652 5,353

Investment income transferred from financial            
operations 10 12 26

Claims payments (after ceded reinsurance) 8) –1,775 –1,728 –3,272

Technical result, non-life operations 189 463 916

Premium income, non-life insurance

Premium income before ceded reinsurance 4,932 4,829 7,124

Premium income after ceded reinsurance 3,361 3,304 5,498

Life-assurance operations

Premium income (after ceded reinsurance) 332 318 477

Fees pertaining to financial agreements 379 359 724

Investment income, net 2 110 121

Claims payments (after ceded reinsurance) –163 –164 –266

Technical result, life-assurance operations 317 304 700

Operating profit for insurance operations 9) 580 913 1,628

Key figures

Cost ratio 10) 29 28 27

Expense ratio 11) 22 22 21

Claims ratio 12) 71 71 67

Combined ratio 93 93 88

Management cost ratio, life-assurance operations 13) 0.9 0.9 0.9

Direct yield, % 14) 0.7 0.7 –0.2

Total return, % 15) 1.9 2.5 4.3

Financial position

Investment assets, SEK billion 16) 14 14 14

Unit-linked insurance assets – policyholder bears the risk, SEK billion 132 120 125

Technical provisions (after ceded reinsurance), SEK billion 9 9 8

Länsförsäkringar AB Group
Key figures
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Key figures for Länsförsäkringar AB Group, cont.

SEK M
Jan–Jun 

2018
Jan–Jun 

2017
Full-year 

2017

Banking operation

Net interest income 2,193 1,911 3,996

Operating profit 888 737 1,599

Net profit for the period 692 575 1,237

Return on equity, % 17) 10.3 9.5 10.0

Total assets, SEK billion 343 300 315

Equity 15,674 13,687 14,328

Cost/income ratio before loan losses 18) 0.48 0.51 0.49

Investment margin, % 19) 1.30 1.30 1.32

Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio Bank Group, % 25.9 24.3 24.3

Tier 1 ratio Bank Group, % 20) 28.3 26.3 26.8

Total capital ratio Bank Group, % 21) 33.5 32.4 32.1

Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio consolidated situation, % 24.7 22.8 23.3

Tier 1 ratio consolidated situation, % 20) 26.1 24.7 24.8

Total capital ratio consolidated situation, % 21) 29.0 28.9 28.1

Credit loss level, % 22) 0.04 0.02 0.02

1)  Operating profit and revaluations of owner-occupied property less 
standard tax at 22.0% in relation to average equity, adjusted for items in 
equity recognised in other comprehensive income excluding revaluations of 
owner-occupied property, and adjusted for Additional Tier 1 Capital loans.

2)  Equity adjusted for Additional Tier 1 Capital loan per share.

3)  Total of shareholders’ equity, adjusted for Additional Tier 1 Capital loans, 
subordinated loan and deferred taxes. 

4)  Solvency capital as a percentage of full-year premium income after ceded 
reinsurance.

5)  The group under the insurance-operation rules comprises the Parent 
Company Länsförsäkringar AB, all of the insurance companies in the Group, 
Länsförsäkringar Bank AB, Wasa Kredit AB, Länsförsäkringar Hypotek AB 
and Länsförsäkringar Fondförvaltning AB. Länsförsäkringar Liv Försäkrings 
AB is also included in the group, despite the company not being consoli-
dated in the Länsförsäkringar AB Group. As stated in the EU Solvency II 
Directive, the calculations are made in accordance with the consolidation 
method, but with Länsförsäkringar Liv included in accordance with the 
deduction and aggregation method as permitted by the Swedish Financial 
Supervisory Authority. 

6)  The financial conglomerate comprises the same companies as the group 
according to the insurance-operation rules, see footnote 5). The calcula-
tions for the financial conglomerate are made using the same methods as 
for the group in accordance with the insurance-operation rules. Unlike the 
group under the insurance-operation rules, the transferability of profits for 
the financial conglomerate is to also be tested in other regulated companies 
than the group’s insurance companies.

7)  The earnings, key figures and financial position of the insurance operations 
are presented in accordance with the Swedish Annual Accounts Act for 
Insurance Companies and Swedish Financial Supervisory Authority’s direc-
tives and general guidelines FFFS 2015:12.

8) Excluding claims adjustment costs.

9)  The operating profit of the insurance operations includes the Länsförsäk-
ringar Sak Group’s and Länsförsäkringar Fondliv’s investment income and 
other non-technical income and expenses.

10)  Operating expenses and claims adjustment costs as a percentage of pre-
miums earned after ceded reinsurance. Pertains only to non-life insurance.

11)  Operating expenses as a percentage of premiums earned after ceded rein-
surance. Pertains only to non-life insurance. Excluding claims adjustment 
costs in accordance with the regulation of the Swedish Financial Supervi-
sory Authority.

12)  Claims payments as a percentage of premiums earned after ceded rein-
surance. Pertains only to non-life insurance. Includes claims adjustment 
costs in accordance with the regulation of the Swedish Financial Supervi-
sory Authority.

13)  Operating expenses and claims adjustment costs in relation to the average 
value of investment assets, investment assets for which the policyholder 
bears the investment risk and cash and cash equivalents.

14)  Direct yield refers to the total of rental income from properties, inte-
rest income, interest expenses, dividends on shares and participations, 
administration costs for asset management and operating expenses for 
properties in relation to the average value of the insurance operations’ 
investment assets and cash and bank balances for the period.

15)  Total return is calculated as the sum of direct yields and changes in the 
value of the investment portfolio in relation to the average value of the 
investment assets during the period. Pertains to non-life insurance and 
life-assurance.

16)  Investment assets comprise owner-occupied property, shares and parti-
cipations in associated companies, shares and participations, bonds and 
other interest-bearing securities, derivatives (assets and liabilities), cash 
and cash equivalents, and interest-bearing libilities.

17)  Operating profit after standard tax at 22.0% in relation to average equity, 
adjusted for changes in value of financial assets recognised in equity. 

18)  Total expenses before loan losses in relation to total income.

19)  Net interest income in relation to average total assets.

20)  Tier 1 capital in relation to the total risk exposure amount.

21)  Total own funds in relation to the total risk exposure amount.

22)  Credit losses, net, for loan receivables in relation to loans to the public and 
credit institutions after loss allowance.

Länsförsäkringar Alliance 
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Consolidated income statement for Länsförsäkringar AB Group

SEK M
Jan–Jun 

2018
Jan–Jun 

2017
Full-year 

2017

Premiums earned before ceded reinsurance 3,893 3,751 7,420

Reinsurers’ portion of premiums earned –832 –806 –1,618

Premiums earned after ceded reinsurance 3,061 2,945 5,802

Interest income 2,554 2,178 4,566

Interest expense –359 –268 –573

Net interest income 2,195 1,,910 3,994

Change in unit-linked insurance assets – policyholder bears the risk 5,669 5,623 10,177

Dividends in unit-linked insurance assets – policyholder bears the risk – – 6

Investment income, net 106 199 295

Commission income 1,436 1,476 2,987

Other operating income 1,075 1,229 2,466

Total operating income 13,542 13,382 25,726

Claims payments before ceded reinsurance –2,238 –2,341 –4,368

Reinsurers’ portion of claims payments 312 459 851

Claims payments after ceded reinsurance –1,925 –1,882 –3,517

Change in life-assurance provision –81 –81 –8

Change in unit-linked insurance liabilities – policyholder bears the risk –5,668 –5,735 –10,352

Commission expense –1,611 –1,562 –3,239

Staff costs –1,148 –1,082 –2,060

Other administration expenses –1,685 –1,522 –3,667

Loan losses –49 –21 –58

Total expenses –12,166 –11,885 –22,901

Operating profit 1,376 1,497 2,825

Tax –257 –297 –575

Net profit for the period 1,119 1,200 2,250

Earnings per share before and after dilution, SEK 107 115 216

Länsförsäkringar AB Group
Financial statements
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for Länsförsäkringar AB Group

SEK M
Jan–Jun 

2018
Jan–Jun 

2017
Full-year 

2017

Net profit for the period 1,119 1,200 2,250

Other comprehensive income

Items that have been transferred or can be transferred to profit for 
the period

Translation differences attributable to foreign operations 20 –8 –5

Cash-flow hedges –72 –110 –115

Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets 11 45 51

Tax attributable to items that have been transferred or can be  
transferred to profit for the period 13 14 14

Total –27 –59 –55

Items that cannot be transferred to profit for the period

Revaluation of owner-occupied property 244 101 211

Revaluation of defined-benefit pension plans – – 3

Change in fair value of equity instruments measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income –3 – –

Tax attributable to items that cannot be reversed to profit for the period –54 –22 –47

Total 187 79 167

Total other comprehensive income for the period, net after tax 159 19 113

Comprehensive income for the period 1,278 1,219 2,362

Consolidated statement of financial position for Länsförsäkringar AB Group

 

SEK M 30 Jun 2018 31 Dec 2017

ASSETS

Goodwill 549 538

Other intangible assets 4,537 4,,304

Deferred tax assets 67 47

Property and equipment 59 44

Owner-occupied property 3,099 2,887

Shares in Länsförsäkringar Liv Försäkrings AB 8 8

Shares and participations in associated companies 48 48

Reinsurers’ portion of technical provisions 11,080 10,475

Loans to the public 275,841 261,444

Unit-linked insurance assets – policyholder bears the risk 131,586 124,730

Shares and participations 2,780 2,570

Bonds and other interest-bearing securities 44,136 44,008

Treasury bills and other eligible bills 15,661 10,531

Derivatives 7,827 5,182

Change in value of hedge portfolios 271 248

Other receivables 7,522 3,576

Prepaid expenses and accrued income 2,045 1,936

Cash and cash equivalents 2,690 1,196

TOTAL ASSETS 509,807 473,773

SEK M 30 Jun 2018 31 Dec 2017

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Share capital 1,042 1,042

Other capital contributed 10,272 10,272

Additional Tier 1 instruments 1,200 1,200

Reserves 628 948

Retained earnings including profit for the period 12,602 11,394

Total equity 25,745 24,857

Subordinated liabilities 2,592 2,596

Technical provisions 20,504 18,903

Unit-linked insurance liabilities – policyholder bears the risk 132,394 125,583

Deferred tax liabilities 1,602 1,533

Other provisions 119 115

Debt securities in issue 201,842 187,870

Deposits from the public 103,416 98,197

Due to credit institutions 9,882 3,996

Derivatives 1,095 1,187

Change in value of hedge portfolios 1,585 1,200

Other liabilities 3,507 3,059

Accrued expenses and deferred income 5,525 4,676

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 509,807 473,773

Länsförsäkringar Alliance 
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity for Länsförsäkringar AB Group

SEK M Share capital
Other capital 

contributed
Additional Tier 1  

instruments Reserves

Retained  
earnings  

including  
net profit for  

the period Total

Opening equity, 1 January 2017 1,042 10,272 1,200 835 9,179 22,529

Comprehensive income for the period – – – 19 1,200 1,219

Issued additional Tier 1 instruments – – – – –16 –16

Closing equity, 30 June 2017 1,042 10,272 1,200 855 10,361 23,731

Opening equity, 1 July 2017 1,042 10,272 1,200 855 10,361 23,731

Comprehensive income for the period – – – 94 1,050 1,143

Issued additional Tier 1 instruments – – – – –18 –18

Closing equity, 31 December 2017 1,042 10,272 1,200 948 11,394 24,857

Effect of the change in accounting policy¹ – – – –480 –393 –87

Opening balance, 1 January 2018 after 
adjustment for change in accounting policy 1,042 10,272 1,200 468 11,787 24,770

Realised gain from sale of shares – – – – 13 13

Dividends paid – – – – –300 –300

Comprehensive income for the period – – – 159 1,119 1,278

Issued additional Tier 1 instruments – – – – –17 –17

Closing equity, 30 June 2018 1,042 10,272 1,200 628 12,602 25,745

Consolidated statement of cash flows for Länsförsäkringar AB Group

SEK M Jan–Jun 2018 Jan–Jun 2017

Operating activities

Profit before tax 1,376 1,497

Adjustment for non-cash items 2,420 2,738

Tax paid -262 –249

Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital 3,534 3,986

Cash flow from changes in working capital

Change in shares and participations, bonds and other interest-bearing securities and derivatives –9,371 –7,774

Increase (–)/Decrease (+) in operating receivables –18,245 –17,541

Increase (+)/Decrease (–) in operating liabilities 12,374 12,300

Cash flow from operating activities –11,708 –13,015

Investing activities

Change in shares and participations in associated companies – 5

Investment in intangible assets –388 –317

Investment in property and equipment –63 –30

Divestment in property and equipment – –1

Investment in owner-occupied property –9 –343

Cash flow from investing activities

Financing activities

Change in debt securities in issue 13,968 11,344

Dividends paid –300 –

Additional Tier 1 instruments –16 –16

Cash flow from financing activities 13,652 11,328

Net cash flow for the period 1,484 1,956

Cash and cash equivalents, 1 January 1,196 1,171

Exchange-rate differences in cash and cash equivalents 10 –3

Cash and cash equivalents, 30 June 2,690 3,124

¹Effect of the change in accounting policy from IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments.
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All figures in SEK M unless otherwise stated.

Note 1 Accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared according to 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the Interna-
tional Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the interpretations of these 
standards issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations 
Committee (IFRS IC) as adopted by the EU. In addition, the Swedish Annual 
Accounts Act for Insurance Companies (1995:1560) and regulation and ge-
neral guidelines FFFS 2015:12 of the Swedish Financial Supervisory Authority 
were applied. The Group also applies the Swedish Financial Reporting Board’s 
recommendation RFR 1 Supplementary Accounting Rules for Groups and 
statements (UFR). The interim report has been prepared in accordance with 
IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting. 

CHANGES TO 2018 REPORTING 
From 1 January 2018, the Group applies the following accounting policies for 
the reporting of financial instruments (IFRS 9) and revenue from contracts 
with customers (IFRS 15). 

IFRS 9 Financial instruments 
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments has replaced IAS 39 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement and contains new requirements for the 
classification and measurement of financial instruments, an expected loss 
impairment model and simplified conditions for hedge accounting. 

Classification and measurement 
Financial assets are classified according to one of the three measurement 
categories: amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income 
or fair value through profit or loss, and are based on the Group’s business 
models for the management of financial assets and the contractual terms 
of the assets. The Group’s classification of financial assets and liabilities 
according to IFRS 9 and the differences compared with IAS 39 are presented 
in note 5.

The Group’s financial assets comprise: 
• Equity instruments 
• Derivative instruments 
• Debt instruments 

Equity instruments 
The equity instruments that exist in the Group are shares and participations. 
The Group has decided to apply the option in IFRS 9 entailing that strate-
gic investments are measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income. 

Gains or losses on the sale of equity instruments measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income are recognised as a reclassification in 
equity and do not impact the income statement. 

Derivative instruments 
Derivative instruments are measured at fair value through profit or loss 
unless they are subject to the rules on hedge accounting. Accordingly, IFRS 9 
does not entail any change in the recognition of derivative instruments. 

Debt instruments 
The business model used to manage a debt instrument and its contractual 
cash flow characteristics determines the classification of a debt instrument. 

If a debt instrument is held within a business model whose objective is 
to realise the instrument’s cash flows by obtaining contractual cash flows 

Länsförsäkringar AB Group
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding, the instrument is measured at amortised cost. The Group has 
made the assessment that the business model for the receivables that were 
classified in the Loans and receivables category under IAS 39 meets the 
criteria for being classified at amortised cost according to IFRS 9. 

If the business model entails that the cash flows of the debt instrument 
are realised by both collecting contractual cash flows and by selling, the in-
strument is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. The 
conclusion is that the business model for the Bank Group’s holding of trea-
sury bills and other eligible bills, bonds and other interest-bearing securities 
corresponds to the criteria for being classified at fair value through other 
comprehensive income. These holdings were classified as Available-for-sale 
financial assets under IAS 39. 

Financial assets in insurance companies are measured according to IAS 
39 at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option since the 
assets are managed and evaluated based on the fair values of the assets, and 
the fair values comprise the basis for the internal monitoring and reporting 
to senior executives. The Group’s financial assets held in a business model 
comprising the management and evaluation of its assets at fair value are 
measured at fair value through profit or loss. 

Gains or losses from the sale of debt instruments are recognised in profit 
and loss on the row investment income, net. 

Financial liabilities 
For financial liabilities, the rules in IFRS 9 are primarily the same as the rules 
in IAS 39, which are described in note 1 of the 2017 Annual Report. 

Hedge accounting
The Group has decided to apply the option entailing that the rules in IAS 39 
will continue to apply for all hedging relationships. The accounting policies 
for hedge accounting applied by the Group are detailed in note 1 of the 2017 
Annual Report. 

Expected credit losses 
A reserve for credit losses (“loss allowance”) is recognised for the Group’s 
financial assets measured at amortised cost and the Bank Group’s debt 
instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, 
financial guarantees and loan commitments. This method differs from IAS 
39 when the loss allowance is first calculated when a credit-impairing event 
occurs. Under IAS 39, reserves for financial guarantees, loan commitments 
and debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income are also not calculated. 

The Bank Group’s loss allowance and derecognition of confirmed credit 
losses are presented in the income statement as credit losses, net. 

Effect of transition to IFRS 9 
The Group applies IFRS 9 retrospectively but, in line with the transitional 
measures, comparative figures have not been restated. 

The effect of the transition from IAS 39 to IFRS 9 is recognised as an 
adjustment of equity (after tax) in the opening balance for 2018, see the table 
Statement of changes in equity. The effect on the statement of financial 
position is presented in its entirety in note 5. In equity, previous impairment 
by Länsförsäkringar Liv Försäkrings AB that impacted retained earnings was 
transferred to the fair value reserve since IFRS 9 no longer permits valua-
tions at cost since the fair value is not reliably measurable. 
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IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers replaced all previously 
issued standards and interpretations on income on 1 January 2018. The 
standard contains a single model for recognising revenue from contracts 
with customers that is not encompassed by other standards (for example, 
IFRS 4 and IFRS 9).

For the Group, this standard encompasses revenue reported in commissi-
on income and other operating income. 

The standard entails the following reclassifications in the income state-
ment for the Group. Costs for rebating of commissions and fund discounts 
are recognised as a deduction in commission income instead of in commissi-
on expense as previously. 

The Group has applied the future-oriented transition method, which en-
tails that the effects of IFRS 15 are recognised as an adjustment to the ope-
ning balance of retained earnings. No such effects have arisen. The method 
also means that comparative figures for 2017 have not been restated. 

NEW IFRS AND INTERPRETATIONS THAT HAVE NOT YET BEEN APPLIED 
IFRS 16 Leases 
IFRS 16 Leases will replace IAS 17 Leases on 1 January 2019. The standard 
primarily entails that the leases in which the Group is the lessee and that are 
currently classified as operating leases will instead need to be recognised in 
the statement of financial position. 

The Länsförsäkringar AB Group will apply the transition method modified 
retrospective approach, which entails that the incremental borrowing rate 
on the transition on 1 January 2019 is used to calculate the lease liability and 
that the comparative year is recognised according to the current IAS 17. Lea-
se assets recognised in the statement of financial position on transition will 
correspond to the lease liability. In connection with the transition, the Group 
will present the material leases that were previously classified as operating 
leases in the statement of financial position. 

In all other respects, the interim report has been prepared in accordance 
with the same accounting policies and calculation methods applied in the 
2017 Annual Report.
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Note 2 Earnings per segment

Jan–Jun 2018, SEK M
Non-life   

insurance
Unit-linked 

insurance Bank
Parent  

Company  

Eliminations 
and  

adjustments Total

Premiums earned after ceded reinsurance 2,884 116 – – 61 3,061

Net interest income – – 2,193 – 2 2,195

Change in unit-linked insurance assets – policyholder bears the risk – 5,669 – – – 5,669

Investment income, net 10 –10 24 1,331 –1,250 106

Commission income 21 824 590 – 1 1,436

Other operating income 207 111 8 1,486 –737 1,075

Total operating income 3,122 6,710 2,815 2,817 –1,923 13,542

Claims payments after ceded reinsurance –2,038 –79 – – 192 –1,925

Change in life-assurance provision – – – – –81 –81

Change in unit-linked insurance liabilities – policyholder bears the risk – –5,668 – – – –5,668

Commission expense –264 –349 –1,005 – 7 –1,611

Staff costs –253 –95 –299 –502 0 –1,148

Other administration expenses –349 –238 –575 –1,019 495 –1,685

Loan losses – – –49 – – –49

Total expenses –2,904 –6,428 –1,927 –1,520 613 –12,166

Technical result 218 282 – – -500 –

Non technical recognition 74 6 – – –80 –

Operating profit 292 288 888 1,297 –1,389 1,376

Tax – – – – – –257

Net profit for the period – – – – – 1,119

Income distribution

External income 3,030 6,498 3,034 789 190 13,542

Internal income 92 212 –219 2,028 –2,113 –

Total operating income 3,122 6,710 2,815 2,817 –1,923 13,542

The distribution into operating segments matches how the Group is organised 
and is monitored by Group Management. The technical result is presented 
for Non-life insurance and Unit -linked insurance since the result is followed 
up by Group Management. Income is primarily attributable to Sweden, with a 
small portion from Denmark, Finland, Norway and the UK.

The Non-life insurance segment pertains to non-life and group life-assurance; 
group life-assurance comprises a minor portion only. The Länsförsäkringar 
Alliance’s internal and external reinsurance is also included. 

The Unit-linked insurance segment pertains to life-assurance with links to 
mutual funds. 

The Bank segment pertains to deposits and lending operations. The legal 
structure of Länsförsäkringar Bank Group matches the product offering to 
customers.

The Parent Company segment pertains to service, IT and development for 
the Länsförsäkringar Alliance, administration of securities funds and costs for 
joint functions.

Depreciation/amortisation and impairment: Depreciation of property and 
equipment and amortisation of intangible assets is included in Other adminis-
tration expenses in Non-life insurance. Amortisation pertaining to acquired 
intangible assets under United-linked insurance is included in eliminations and 
adjustments of administration expenses.

Investment income, net: Investment income that is transferred from financial 
operations to insurance operations is recognised in non-life insurance.

Continued on next page
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Note 2 Earnings per segment, cont.

Jan–Jun 2017, SEK M
Non-life   

insurance
Unit-linked 

insurance Bank
Parent  

Company  

Eliminations 
and  

adjustments Total

Premiums earned after ceded reinsurance 2,787 102 – – 56 2,945

Net interest income – – 1,911 – –1 1,910

Change in unit-linked insurance assets – policyholder bears the risk – 5,623 – – – 5,623

Investment income, net 12 113 –35 1,247 –1,138 199

Commission income 17 779 880 – –201 1,476

Other operating income 441 113 10 1,365 –699 1,229

Total operating income 3,257 6,730 2,765 2,612 –1,983 13,382

Claims payments after ceded reinsurance –1,988 –65 – – 170 –1,882

Change in life-assurance provision – – – – –81 –81

Change in unit-linked insurance liabilities – policyholder bears the risk – –5,735 – – – –5,735

Commission expense –245 –318 –1,208 – 210 –1,562

Staff costs –231 –90 –296 –476 11 –1,082

Other administration expenses –316 –232 –503 –961 490 –1,522

Loan losses – – –21 – – –21

Total expenses –2,780 –6,441 –2,028 –1,437 801 –11,885

Technical result 477 290 – – –767 –

Non technical recognition 147 0 – – –147 –

Operating profit 624 290 737 1,175 –1,328 1,497

Tax – – – – – –297

Net profit for the period – – – – – 1,200

Income distribution

External income 3,169 6,530 2,768 674 241 13,382

Internal income 88 201 –2 1,937 –2,224 –

Total operating income 3,257 6,730 2,765 2,612 –1,983 13,382

Note 3 Related-party transactions

SEK M
Income 

Jan–Jun
Expenses 
Jan–Jun

Receivables 
30 Jun

Liabilities 
30 Jun

Commit-
ments 
30 Jun

2018

Länsförsäkringar Liv Group 171 4 84 943 303

Regional insurance companies 1,802 2,000 10,109 14,992 59

Other related parties 14 23 25 41 6

2017

Länsförsäkringar Liv Group 183 33 133 698 601

Regional insurance companies 2,349 2,317 10,165 15,107 63

Other related parties 12 42 22 44 6

Income and expenses include interest. Receivables and liabilities to regional insurance 
companies include technical reserves.
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Note 4 Fair value valuation techniques

Table 1 30 June 2018 31 December 2017

SEK M Book value Fair value Book value Fair value

Assets

Shares in Länsförsäkringar Liv Försäkrings AB 8 8 8 8

Loans to the public 275,841 276,536 261,444 262,346

Unit-linked insurance assets – policyholder bears the risk 131,586 131,586 124,730 124,730

Shares and participations 2,780 2,780 2,570 2,570

Bonds and other interest-bearing securities 44,136 44,136 44,008 44,008

Treasury bills and other eligible bills 15,661 15,661 10,531 10,531

Derivatives 7,827 7,827 5,182 5,182

Other receivables 3,232 – 392 –

Cash and cash equivalents 2,690 – 1,196 –

Total assets 483,761 450,061

Liabilities

Subordinated liabilities 2,592 2,663 2,596 2,682

Debt securities in issue 201,842 207,150 187,870 191,829

Deposits from the public 103,416 104,800 98,197 99,962

Due to credit institutions 9,882 – 3,996 –

Derivatives 1,095 1,095 1,187 1,187

Other liabilities 589 – 875 –

Total liabilities 319,416 294,721

Gains and losses are recognised in profit and loss in Investment income, net.

The fair value of other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, due to credit institutions and other liabilities comprises a reasonable approximation based on the 
cost of the assets and liabilities since these assets and liabilities have short terms.
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Note 4 Fair value valuation techniques, cont.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are presented in the table based on the valuation techniques applied:

Level 1 refers to prices determined from prices listed in an active market.
Level 2 refers to prices determined by calculated prices of observable market listings.
Level 3 refers to prices based on own assumptions and judgements.

Table 2 –  Fair value valuation techniques

30 June 2018, SEK M Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets

Owner-occupied property – – 3,099 3,099

Unit-linked insurance assets – policyholder bears the risk 131,586 – – 131,586

Shares and participations 1,705 25 1,050 2,780

Bonds and other interest-bearing securities 43,911 – 225 44,136

Treasury bills and other eligible bills 15,661 – – 15,661

Derivatives 1 7,826 – 7,827

Liabilities 

Derivatives 0 1,095 – 1,095

31 December 2017, SEK M

Assets

Owner-occupied property – – 2,887 2,887

Unit-linked insurance assets – policyholder bears the risk 124,730 – – 124,730

Shares and participations 1,603 13 954 2,570

Bonds and other interest-bearing securities 43,820 – 188 44,008

Treasury bills and other eligible bills 10,531 – – 10,531

Derivatives 1 5,181 – 5,182

Liabilities

Derivatives 0 1,187 – 1,187

There were no significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during 2018 or during 2017. There were no transfers from Level 3 in 2018 or 2017. 

Normally, there are no active markets for owner-occupied property within Level 3, which is why fair value is estimated using models based on discounted cash 
flows. The method applied to the calculation of fair value is a combination of the location-price method, based on reported purchases of comparable properties, 
and a return-based cash-flow method. The return method is based on a calculation of the present value of future actual cash flows in the form of operating net, 
which has been successively adjusted to market over 10 years and the present value of the estimated residual value in year 10. The residual value was estimated 
by performing a constant capitalisation of an estimated market-adjusted operating net. 

Shares and participations in Level 3 are measured at fair value. Holdings in Länsförsäkringar AB and the insurance companies are measured at equity per share 
based on the most recent company reports. Delisted, insolvent companies are measured at zero, if no other listing can be found. Länsförsäkringar Bank AB holds 
shares and participations that cannot be reliably measured based on listing in an active market. Instead, regular valuations are performed based on, for example, 
recent company reports and forecast results. 

The fair value of Level 2 shares and participations that pertain to unquoted Series B shares with conversion rights to quoted Series A shares without restrictions 
is measured based on the price of the Series A share on the balance-sheet date. 

Level 2 derivatives essentially refer to swaps for which fair value has been calculated by discounting expected future cash flows. 

Bonds and other interest-bearing securities in Level 3 that are not quoted in an active market comprise interest-bearing, unquoted loans. Valuations are perfor-
med by external managers based on generally accepted valuation techniques, which means that the underlying holdings held by the issuer of the loan are valued 
based on relevant observable market data wherever available. Holdings for which market data is not available are measured at a fair value corresponding to the 
cost adjusted for impairment.
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Note 4 Fair value valuation techniques, cont.

Table 3 – Change level 3

SEK M
Owner-occupied 

property
Shares and  

participations

Bonds and other  
interest-bearing  

securities Other receivables Total

Opening balance, 1 January 2018 2,887 954 188 – 4,029

Acquisition 9 0 29 – 37

Divestments – –10 – – –10

Recognised in net profit for the period –40 103 8 – 70

Recognised in other comprehensive income 244 3 – – 248

Closing balance, 30 June 2018 3,099 1,050 225 – 4,374

Opening balance, 1 January 2017 2,721 786 149 20 3,675

Acquisition 31 21 35 – 87

Divestments – –10 – –20 –30

Recognised in net profit for the year –77 158 4 – 85

Recognised in other comprehensive income 211 – – – 211

Closing balance, 31 December 2017 2,887 954 188 – 4,029
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Consolidated statement of financial position for Länsförsäkringar AB Group

SEK M
1 January 2018

IAS 39 Adjustment
1 January 2018

IFRS 9

Assets

Goodwill 538 538

Other intangible assets 4,304 4,304

Deferred tax assets 47 47

Property and equipment 44 44

Owner-occupied property 2,887 2,887

Shares in Länsförsäkringar Liv Försäkrings AB 8 8

Shares and participations in associated companies 48 48

Reinsurers’ portion of technical provisions 10,475 10,475

Loans to the public 261,444 -88 261,356

Unit-linked insurance assets – policyholder bears the risk 124,730 124,730

Shares and participations 2,570 2,570

Bonds and other interest-bearing securities 44,008 44,008

Treasury bills and other eligible bills 10,531 10,531

Derivatives 5,182 5,182

Change in value of hedge portfolios 248 248

Other receivables 3,576 33 3,609

Prepaid expenses and accrued income 1,936 -5 1,931

Cash and cash equivalents 1,196 1,196

Total assets 473,773 -60 473,713

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Share capital 1,042 1,042

Other capital contributed 10,272 10,272

Additional Tier 1 instruments 1,200 1,200

Reserves 948 -544 404

Retained earnings including profit for the period 11,394 457 11,851

Total equity 24,857 -87 24,770

Subordinated liabilities 2,596 2,596

Technical provisions 18,903 18,903

Unit-linked insurance liabilities – policyholder bears the risk 125,583 125,583

Deferred tax liabilities 1,533 1,533

Other provisions 115 19 134

Debt securities in issue 187,870 187,870

Deposits from the public 98,197 98,197

Due to credit institutions 3,996 3,996

Derivatives 1,187 1,187

Change in value of hedge portfolios 1,200 1,200

Other liabilities 3,059 9 3,068

Accrued expenses and deferred income 4,676 4,676

Total equity and liabilities 473,773 27 473,800

Note 5 Financial effect of change in accounting policy from IAS 39 to IFRS 9

The transition from IAS 39 to IFRS 9 entails that the Länsförsäkringar AB Group’s equity declined SEK 87 M. The Länsförsäkringar AB Group’s loss allowance 
increased SEK 88 M and the regional insurance companies’ commitments for credit losses for generated business increased SEK 33 M. The loss allowance for loan 
commitments and guarantees amounted to SEK 19 M.
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Financial assets and liabilities by category according to IFRS 9

SEK M
Carrying amount 

1 January 2018 Category according to IAS 39 Category according to IFRS 9

Assets

Shares in Länsförsäkringar Liv Försäkrings AB 8 Available-for-sale financial assets
Fair value through other comprehensive 
income

Loans to the public 261,356 Loans and receivables Amortised cost

Unit-linked insurance assets – policyholder bears the risk 124,730
Financial assets designated at fair value 
through profit or loss Fair value through profit or loss

Shares and participations 2,570

  of which: strategic investments 101

55
Financial assets designated at fair value 
through profit or loss

Fair value through other comprehensive 
income

46 Available-for-sale financial assets
Fair value through other comprehensive 
income

 of which:  other shares and participations 2,469
Financial assets designated at fair value 
through profit or loss Fair value through profit or loss

Bonds and other interest-bearing securities 44,008

 of which: holdings in the insurance companies 7,570
Financial assets designated at fair value 
through profit or loss Fair value through profit or loss

 of which: holdings in Länsförsäkringar AB 720 Available-for-sale financial assets Fair value through profit or loss

 of which: holdings in the Bank Group 35,718 Available-for-sale financial assets
Fair value through other comprehensive 
income

Treasury bills and other eligible bills 10,531 Available-for-sale financial assets
Fair value through other comprehensive 
income

Derivatives 5,182

 of which: hedge accounting 5,111 Derivatives for hedge accounting Derivatives for hedge accounting

 of which: other 71 Held for trading Fair value through profit or loss

Other receivables 425 Loans and receivables Amortised cost

Cash and cash equivalents 1,196 Loans and receivables Amortised cost

Total assets 450,006

Liabilities

Subordinated liabilities 2,596 Other financial liabilities Other financial liabilities

Debt securities in issue 187,870 Other financial liabilities Other financial liabilities

Deposits from the public 98,197 Other financial liabilities Other financial liabilities

Due to credit institutions 3,996 Other financial liabilities Other financial liabilities

Derivatives 1,187

 of which: hedge accounting 1,166 Derivatives for hedge accounting Derivatives for hedge accounting

 of which: other 20 Held for trading Fair value through profit or loss

Other liabilities 875 Other financial liabilities Other financial liabilities

Total liabilities 294,721

Reconciliation of loss allowance for transition to IFRS 9

SEK M
1 January 2018

IAS 39 Adjustment
1 January 2018

IFRS 9

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

 Cash and cash equivalents - 0.0 0.0

 Loans to the public 267.5 88.3 355.8

 Other receivables - - -

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

 Treasury bills and other eligible bills - 0.2 0.2

 Bonds and other interest-bearing securities - 0.5 0.5

Loan commitments and other credit commitments - 18.5 18.5

Guarantees - 0.1 0.1

Total loss allowance 267.5 107.6 375.1

Note 5 Financial effect of change in accounting policy from IAS 39 to IFRS 9, cont.
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Income statement for Länsförsäkringar AB, Parent Company 

SEK M
Jan–Jun 

2018
Jan–Jun 

2017
Full-year 

2017

Net sales 1,486 1,365 2,948

Operating expenses

External expenses –997 –949 –2,163

Staff costs –502 –467 –888

Depreciation/amortisation and impairment of property and equipment 
and intangible assets –22 –22 –133

Operating profit/loss –34 –72 –236

Profit/loss from financial items

Profit from participations in Group companies 1,335 1,276 1,931

Interest income and similar profit/loss items 0 9 5

Interest expense and similar profit/loss items –3 –39 –63

Profit/loss after financial items 1,297 1,174 1,638

Tax –1 1 –13

Profit/loss for the period 1,295 1,175 1,625

Statement of comprehensive income for Länsförsäkringar AB, Parent Company 

SEK M
Jan–Jun 

2018
Jan–Jun 

2017
Full-year 

2017

Profit/loss for the period 1,295 1,175 1,625

Other comprehensive income

Items that have been transferred or can be transferred to profit for 
the period

Cash–flow hedges – 10 17

Change for the year in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets – –6 –6

Tax attributable to items that have been transferred or can be  
transferred to profit for the period – –1 –2

Items that cannot be transferred to profit for the period

Change in fair value of equity instruments measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income 0 – –

Total other comprehensive income for the period, net after tax 0 3 9

Comprehensive income for the period 1,295 1,178 1,633

Länsförsäkringar AB, Parent Company
Financial statements
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Balance sheet for Länsförsäkringar AB, Parent Company 

SEK M 30 Jun 2018 31 Dec 2017

ASSETS

Fixed assets

Intangible assets 415 398

Property and equipment 53 61

Financial assets

Shares and participations in Group companies 18,760 17,912

Other fixed assets 920 741

Total financial assets 19,680 18,653

Total fixed assets 20,148 19,112

Current assets 815 978

Cash and bank balances 217 254

TOTAL ASSETS 21,179 20,345

EQUITY, PROVISIONS AND LIABILITIES

Restricted equity 6,054 6,033

Non-restricted equity 13,552 12,578

Total equity 19,607 18,611

Provisions 50 65

Long-term liabilities 288 216

Current liabilities 1,234 1,453

TOTAL EQUITY, PROVISIONS AND LIABILITIES 21,179 20,345

Statement of cash flows for Länsförsäkringar AB, Parent Company 

SEK M
Jan–Jun

2018
Jan–Jun

2017

Operating activities

Profit after financial items 1,297 1,175

Adjustment for non-cash items 6 14

Tax paid –22 –

Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital 1,280 1,189

Cash flow from changes in working capital

Increase (–)/Decrease (+) in operating receivables –19 –1,164

Increase (+)/Decrease (–) in operating liabilities –96 14

Cash flow from operating activities 1,166 39

Investing activities

Acquisition of shares in Group company –850 –

Other investing activities –53 –90

Cash flow from investing activities –903 –90

Financing activities

Dividends paid –300 –

Cash flow from financing activities –300 –

Cash flow for the period –37 –51

Cash and cash equivalents, 1 January 254 251

Cash and cash equivalents, 30 June 217 200
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Statement of changes in equity for Länsförsäkringar AB, Parent Company

Restricted equity Non-restricted equity

SEK M Share capital

Development 
Expenditures 

Fund
Statutory 

reserve
Fair value 

reserve 
Hedging 
reserve

Share  
premium 

reserve

Retained 
earnings, 
including  
net profit  

for the year Total

Opening equity, 1 January 2017 1,042 241 4,801 5 –13 5,471 5,430 16,978

Comprehensive income for the period – – – –5 8 – 1,175 1,178

Capitalised proprietary development 
expenditures – 25 – – – – –25 –

Closing equity, 30 June 2017 1,042 266 4,801 1 –5 5,471 6,580 18,157

Opening equity, 1 July 2017 1,042 266 4,801 1 –5 5,471 6,580 18,157

Comprehensive income for the period – – – 0 5 – 450 455

Capitalised proprietary development 
expenditures – –77 – – – – 77 –

Closing equity, 31 December 2017 1,042 189 4,801 1 – 5,471 7,106 18,611

Effect due to change in accounting policy¹ – – – –504 – – 504 –

Opening balance, 1 January 2018 after 
adjustment for change in accounting policy 1,042 189 4,801 –503, – 5,471 7,610 18,611

Dividends paid – – – – – – –300 –300

Comprehensive income for the period – – – 0 – – 1,295 1,295

Capitalised proprietary development 
expenditures – 21 – – – – –21 –

Closing equity, 30 June 2018 1,042 211 4,801 –503 – 5,471 8,584 19,607

¹Effect of the change in accounting policy from IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments.
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Note 1 Accounting policies

The Parent Company prepares its accounts according to the Swedish Annual 
Accounts Act (1995:1554). The company also applies the Swedish Financial 
Reporting Board’s recommendation RFR 2 Accounting for Legal Entities and 
statements issued pertaining to listed companies. The regulations in RFR 2 
stipulate that in the annual accounts the Parent Company is to apply all IFRS 
adopted by the EU and statements to the extent that this is possible within the 
framework of the Swedish Annual Accounts Act and the Pension Obligations 
Vesting Act and with consideration to the relationship between accounting and 
taxation. The recommendation stipulates the permissible exceptions from and 
additions to IFRS. 

AMENDED ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED FROM  
1 JANUARY 2018 
From 1 January 2018, Länsförsäkringar AB applies the following new accounting 
policies for the reporting of financial instruments (IFRS 9) and revenue from 
contracts with customers (IFRS 15). The changes in accounting policies applied 
by the Parent Company from 1 January 2018 correspond to the changes for the 
Group and are described in the Group’s note 1 Accounting policies. Länsförsäk-
ringar AB’s classification of financial assets and liabilities according to IFRS 9 
and the differences compared with IAS 39 are presented in note 4. 

Effect of transition to IFRS 9 
In line with the transitional measures, Länsförsäkringar AB has chosen not 
to restate comparative information for prior periods and have no transition 
effects of IFRS 9 recognised in retained earnings on 1 January 2018. IFRS 9 
also did not entail any differences for the measurement of balance-sheet items 
compared with previous carrying amounts under IAS 39. 

Changes in fair value of equity instruments that previously impacted retai-
ned earnings and that are measured at fair value through other comprehen-
sive income under IFRS 9 were transferred to the fair value reserve. Changes 
in value of debt instruments that were previously recognised in the fair value 
reserve and that are measured at fair value through profit and loss under 
IFRS 9 were transferred to retained earnings. In equity, previous impairment 
by Länsförsäkringar Liv Försäkrings AB that impacted retained earnings was 
also transferred to the fair value reserve since IFRS 9 no longer permits 
valuations at cost. 

Note 2 Disclosures on related parties

SEK M
Income 

Jan–Jun
Expenses 
Jan–Jun

Receivables 
30 Jun

Liabilities 
30 Jun

Commit-
ments 
30 Jun

2018

Group companies 2,027 69 463 292 –

Länsförsäkringar Liv Group 116 2 0 168 303

Regional insurance companies 617 11 131 553 –

Other related parties 13 14 – – –

2017

Group companies 1,938 68 1,845 238 –

Länsförsäkringar Liv Group 115 9 22 280 601

Regional insurance companies 663 23 142 510 –

Other related parties 11 13 – 6 –

Income and expenses include interest.

Note 3 Pledged assets and contingent liabilities

SEK M 30 Jun 2018 31 Dec 2017

Pledged assets

Pledged shares in subsidiaries 303 300

Contingent liabilities

Part-owner of Utile Dulci 2 HB 19 23

Amounts are in SEK, unless otherwise stated.

Länsförsäkringar AB, Parent Company
Notes to the financial statements
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Note 4 Transition to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Länsförsäkringar AB began applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments from 1 January 2018. Changes to accounting policies attributable to IFRS 9 are  
described in note 1 Accounting policies.

Financial assets and liabilities by category according to IFRS 9

SEK M
Carrying amount 

1 January 2018 Category according to IAS 39 Category according to IFRS 9

Assets

Other securities held as fixed assets 729

  of which:  bonds and other interest bearing 
securities 720

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit 
or loss

Fair value through other comprehensive 
income

 of which:  strategic investments 9
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit 
or loss Fair value through profit or loss

Shares in Länsförsäkringar Liv Försäkrings AB 8 Available-for-sale financial assets
Fair value through other 
comprehensive income

Receivables from Group companies 677 Loans and receivables Amortised cost

Receivables from other related parties 142 Loans and receivables Amortised cost

Other receivables 53 Loans and receivables Amortised cost

Prepaid expenses and accrued income 106 Loans and receivables Amortised cost

Cash and bank balances 254 Loans and receivables Amortised cost

Total assets 1,970

Liabilities

Liabilities to Group companies 292 Other financial liabilities Amortised cost

Liabilities to other related parties 802 Other financial liabilities Amortised cost

Other liabilities and accounts payable 202 Other financial liabilities Amortised cost

Accrued expenses and deferred income 373 Other financial liabilities Amortised cost

Total liabilities 1,669

Loss allowances for cash and bank balances and receivables amounted to zero or almost zero.

The President and CEO submitted the report for Länsförsäkringar AB Group 
 (pages 11-13, 16-30) on behalf of the Board of Directors. 

This report has not been reviewed by the company’s auditor.

Stockholm 29 August 2018

Sören Westin
President and CEO
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Income statement for Länsförsäkringar Liv Försäkrings AB

SEK M
Jan–Jun  

2018
Jan–Jun  

2017
Full-year 

2017

Premium income after ceded reinsurance 818 791 1,533

Investment income net 1,029 2,646 5,480

Claims payments –2,644 –2,706 –5,404

Change in technical provisions 1,820 1,460 1,990

Operating expenses –179 –188 –417

Technical result, life insurance operations 844 2,003 3,182

Non-technical expenses – – –

Profit before tax 844 2,003 3,182

Tax allocation reserve – – 61

Tax –61 –66 –122

Profit for the period 783 1,937 3,121

Items that cannot be transferred to profit and loss – – –

Comprehensive income for the period 783 1,937 3,121

Balance sheet for Länsförsäkringar Liv Försäkrings AB

SEK M 30 Jun 2018 31 Dec 2017

ASSETS

Investment assets 114,741 115,377

Reinsurers’ portion of technical provisions 472 472

Receivables 3,159 1,217

Other assets 3,237 5,423

Prepaid expenses and accrued income 90 105

TOTAL ASSETS 121,699 122,594

EQUITY, PROVISIONS AND LIABILITIES

Equity 24,443 24,150

Untaxed reserves 327 327

Technical provisions 88,278 90,165

Provisions for other risks and expenses 87 76

Deposits from reinsurers 472 472

Liabilities 7,923 7,215

Accrued expenses and deferred income 169 189

TOTAL EQUITY, PROVISIONS AND LIABILITIES 121,699 122,594

Länsförsäkringar Liv Försäkrings AB
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Financial calendar 2018

Interim report January–September 2018 Länsförsäkringar Bank 25 October

Interim report January–September 2018 Länsförsäkringar Hypotek 25 October
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